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1. Name of Property

historlc name Johnsontown
other names/site number Hawksmoor CH-348
2. Location
street & number Fairgrounds Road N/AL_Inot for publication
clty, town La Plata X | vicinity
state Maryland code MD county Charles code 017 zlp code 20646
3. Classification
Ownership of Property Category of Property Number of Resources within Property
[X] private [X] bullding(s) Contributing Noncontributing
(] public-local (] district 2 bulldings
[ public-State [ site 1 1 sites
[] public-Federal [] structure structures

[ object objects

3 1 __ Total
ne of related multiple property ilsting: Number of contributing resources previously
N/A listed in the National Register

4. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1866, as amended, | hereby certify that this
[(X] nomination Drequoat for determination of eligibllity meets the documentation standards for registering propertles In the
Natlonal Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth In 36 CFR Part 80.

In my opinian, the property [X] meets [_]does not meet the National Ragister criterla. Ds« continuation sheat.
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6. Function or Use ) CH-348

Historic Functions (enter categories frc  nstructions) Current Functic  snter categories from instructions)
DOMESTIC/single dwelling DOMESTIC/single dwelling
AGRICULTURE/SUBSISTENCE/storage DOMESTIC/secondary structure

7. Description

Architectural Classification ) Materials (enter categories from instructions)
(enter categories from instructions)

foundation _ BRICK

- — WOOD
other WooD

Describe present and historic physical appearance.
DESCRIPTTION SUMMARY :

A two-story, two-part clapboarded frame dwelling with an east-west axis and
facing south, Johnsontown represents two major periods of construction. The
older part of the house is its west end section. Built between 1798 and 1818,
in its original form it was essentially a one-room deep dwelling erected over
a full, brick-walled cellar. The interior spatial arrangement included a large
drawing room and two smaller adjacent rooms on the first floor, and two bedrooms
above. The exterior featured full-width front and rear porches, and an exterior
chimney flanked by one-story frame pents. The centrally positioned entrance door
of the four-bay principal facade opened directly into the drawing room, while
the end door of the three-bay rear elevation opened onto a small stair passage.
In about 1818 the house was enlarged by a two-part frame addition to its east,
chimmey end. The wing consisted of a two-story, two-room section with an
exterior chimney at its east end. This was joined to the original part of the
house by an off-set, one-story hyphen containing a passage and a pantry. In the
early twentieth century the house was extensively renovated, work that included
the replacement of the roofing, exterior siding and window sash. It was at this
same time that the former hyphen was raised to two full stories. Not many years
later, the front and rear porches of the main block were removed. In 1980, after
standing vacant for over twenty years, the house was rehabilitated. Wwhile all
of the existing exterior finishes are new, they replicate known original
features. The building's original spatial arrangement, woodwork and other early
finishes remain preserved. Approximately 125 feet to the southeast is a multi-
use agricultural building believed to be contemporary with the oldest part of
the house. A heavily timber-framed structure, it originally was used for the
storage of grain and whole corn in three lower rooms, while its steeply pitched
loft was used for curing tobacco. The exterior of this building was remodeled
in the early 1950s, but it nevertheless retains a significant amount of early
fabric and carpentry details. About 75 feet from the west end of the house is
the site of a small cemetery where several mid-nineteenth century owners of the
property are interred. Adjacent to this is a second cemetery, relocated in 1990
from a nearby historically associated property. This cemetery consists of seven
monuments, including an obelisk and ledger, a tablet and ledger, four ledgers
on angled marble bases, and a large granite stone marking two graves. The graves
range in date from 1859 to 1912 and are of the same family that owned the
property from 1818 to 1943.

[X] see continuation sheet No. 1
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- GENERAT, DESCRTPTTON:

Johnsontown is situated about 2-1/2 miles south of Ia Plata, at the end of
a private road approximately eight-tenths of a mile east of Fairgrounds Road.
The property is largely open and has historically remained in agricultural use.
The following description of historic resources is keyed to the site plan,
Continuation Sheet 7.5.

1. Dwelling

As it presently exists, this two-part, frame structure reflects two major
phases of construction. Other, less significant changes occurred early in the
twentieth century; in the 1980s it underwent an extensive exterior and interior
rehabilitation/restoration.

Built on an east-west axis, the earliest section of the house is its west
end main block. Construction was initiated after 1798, when a previous dwelling
that stood on the property was destroyed by fire, and essentially completed by

+ 1818. In its original form, this portion of the house contained a full cellar,
a large (19-by-19) drawing room, stair passage and small bedroom on the first
floor, two second floor bedrooms, and a floored but unfinished attic. The cellar
level had a single, dirt-floored room with a large, arched fireplace at one end
and was probably used for storage. The high—ceilinged first floor rooms were
finished with lath and plaster over fully nogged walls, molded baseboards, three-
piece chair rails, two-piece window and door architraves, and bold, raised panel
doors with wrought hardware. The two second floor bedrooms were similarly
finished, but had batten doors rather than paneled doors. Original exterior
features included simple, one-piece door and window trim, beaded clapboards, and
wood roof shingles. One-story, shed-roofed porches extended the full width of
the front and rear elevations. At the east end stood a brick, Flemish-bond
chimney with a free-standing stack that was flanked by one-story, frame pents.
Access to the cellar was by a door below the southeast pent. Facing south, the
four-bay principal facade featured a central door flanked by three windows of
9-over-9 pane sash, and four second floor windows of 6-over-6 sash. The entrance
door opened directly into the drawing room. Much more in character with the
building's Federal period origins, the three-bay rear elevation had an end door
that opened onto the stair passage. Evidence that the house was built prior to
1818 was revealed during the building's rehabilitation/restoration when initials
and names of the house's pre-1818 owner and immediate members of his family were
found inscribed on several clapboards, nogging bricks and pieces of interior
trim.

See Continuation Sheet No. 2
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Following the sale of the Johnsontown property in 1818 the house was
enlarged by a two-part frame addition to its east end. This consisted of a two-
story, two-room structure built 12-feet from the end of the original dwelling.
This was then joined to the main block by a narrow, one-story hyphen containing
a passage and a pantry. Both the hyphen and the main part of the wing were
sheathed with beaded clapboards and had wood shingled roofs. A common-bond brick
chimney with stepped weatherings at the east end provided first and second floor
fireplaces. According to an 1844 inventory, the lower room was used as a dining
room; however, it may also have served as separate living quarters for the
married daughter of the property's owner, who is known to have been living at
Johnsontown with her children in the 1840s and 1850s. No other changes were made
to the house until about 1850 when a small frame structure was moved from another
location on the property and attached to the east end of the Period II wing.
This was then remodeled for use as a kitchen; access between it and the wing was
provided via a narrow shed.

In about 1900 the exterior of the building was thoroughly renovated, work
that included the replacement of the window sash, siding and roof sheathings.
At the same time, the former hyphen was raised to two full stories to match the

+ height and depth of the outer section of the wing. Not many years later, the
front and rear porches of the main block were removed. Minor changes made to
the building in the early 1950s included the introduction of basic wiring and
plumbing, removal of the first floor mantels and the flooring of the drawing
room, and a remodeling of the interior of the kitchen wing. In the early 1960s
the house was briefly occupied by tenants, but then abandoned. By 1980, when
the house was sold to the present owner, the deteriorated condition of the

- exterior finishes necessitated their complete replacement. The existing wood
- shingle roofing, beaded clapboard siding, trim and window sash all date from the
1980 renovation, but replicate known original finishes. Although some structural
repairs were required, the interior woodwork and spatial arrangement are
contemporary with the original spatial arrangement. With the exception of the
two existing first floor Federal-period mantels, which were acquired locally and
are probably similar to those which formerly existed, and a ceiling cornice in
the drawing room, the interior woodwork is contemporary with its Phase I and II
periods of development. The new front and rear porches of the main block
correspond in height, depth and roof pitch to the Period I porches. The c.1840
kitchen wing was removed due to extensive alterations and advanced stages of

deterioration.

*

See Cdntinuation Sheet No. 3
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. 2. Granary

This one-story, 34-by-20-foot building is believed to be contemporary with
the oldest section of the dwelling house. Although almost all of its original
exterior finishes were replaced in the early 1950s, substantial evidence remains
to show that its north and south elevations and both gables were sheathed with
beaded clapboards, while the first floor levels of both ends were covered by
horizontal planks spaced an average of 1-inch apart. The wide spacing of the
original roof nailers show that it was clad with side-lapped riven boards with
an 18-inch exposure. There are three doors in the south, front elevation and
a single small window opening centered in the north wall. The window was
unglazed and fitted with a plank shutter. Originally, there were no openings
in the end elevations. When the exterior of the building was renovated in the
early 1950s, the lower part of the west wall was reframed and a door and two
windows installed. A gable door opening and a louvered vent near the gable peak
were installed in this elevation at the same time. The lower level of the
building was partitioned into three rooms. The larger, central room retains its
original wall sheathing of wide, flush boards and was used for grain storage.
The more narrow flanking rooms had side walls clad with riven slats, some of

» Wwhich remain preserved, and were used for corn storage. The building possesses
an unusually high and steeply pitched roof, with the rafter trusses spaced an
average of 4 feet on center. A series of tier poles attached to and contemporary
with each pair of rafters indicate that the unfloored loft was utilized for the
air-curing of tobacco. A heavily timber-framed structure with mortise and tenon
joinery and wrought nail fasteners throughout, this building possesses many
interesting carpentry features. Notable among these are lapped and pinned braces
joining the end girts to the partition headers of the grain room. Also of
interest are calculations for production and sales of grain spanning the
nineteenth and early twentieth centuries that are inscribed on the interior
sheathing boards of the grain room. Equipment sheds added to the building's
north, south and east elevations in the early 1950s were recently removed. The
structure is currently being stabilized in preparation for restoration to its
nineteenth century appearance.

3. Cemetery Site

~ This site, approximately 75 feet from the west end of the house, is that
of a small cemetery where several members of the Wills family were interred in
the mid-nineteenth century. Two monuments recorded in the 1930s included that
of John B. Wills, Jr. and his son Alexander, both of whom died in 1844. In the
late-1940s these stones were removed and discarded in a nearby ravine. Fragments

See Continuation Sheet No. 4
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. have since been recovered. Historical records associated with the property and
the Wills family indicate that there probably were at least two additional
burials in this location, including that of Charles Wills in 1845 and Ann Wills
in 1864.

4. Cemetery

This cemetery, located about 75 feet northwest of site #3, was relocated
here in August 1990 from its original location on a nearby historically
associated property known as Preference (CH-73), now a residential subdivision.
The cemetery includes seven monuments, and the remains of eight members of the
Wills family that were exhumed and reinterred. The monuments comprise four flat
marble ledgers on angled marble bases, a combination obelisk and ledger, a
combination tablet and ledger, and a large granite monument marking two graves.
The monuments range in date from 1859 to 1912, and are those of the first wife,
eldest son, daughter-in-law, and five grandchildren of John B. Wills, Jr. of
Johnsontown.

See Continuation Sheet No. 5



8. Statement of Significance i CH-348
Certifying official has considered the sio~*“icance of this property in relation to other p~ srties:
_{nationally [ statewide locai.

Applicable National Register Criteria [ JA [ 18 [Xlc []p

sria Considerations (Exceptions) l:IA DB DC L__]D |_'__]E [JF DG

Areas of Significance (enter categories from instructions) Period of Significance Signi
ignificant Dates
ARCHITECTURE c.1800-c.1820 1800
1810
1818
= Cultural Affiliation
N/A
Significant Person Architect/Builder
N/A Unknown

State significance of property, and justify criteria, criteria considerations, and areas and periods of significance noted above.

SIGNIFICANCE SUMMARY :

Johnsontown encompasses two buildings, a house and a granary, that are each
of architectural significance in a local historic context. The exterior design,
spatial configuration and detailing of the earliest part of the house, believed
to have been built between c.1800 and c.1810, clearly reflect the dramatic change
in housing forms at the middle and upper economic class levels that occurred in
this region between about 1790 and 1830, especially from the one-room—-deep, hall-
parlor house type characteristic of the colonial period to the three-bay, side-
‘passagé houses of the Federal period. Remarkably few houses survive in Charles
County that illustrate as well as Johnsontown this highly important phase in
local architectural development. Although several other houses of a similar
transitional design and room arrangement once existed in this area, Johnsontown
is the sole surviving example of its form. Enhancing the building's
architectural interest is the distinctly unusual original plan of its east wing,
puilt about 1818-1820, which, while later altered, is clearly evident on the
interior. The adjacent granary, believed to be contemporary with the oldest
section of the house, is arguably one of Charles County's most architecturally
significant agricultural buildings. In addition to being one of the earliest
surviving agricultural-use structures of any type in the county, it is
particularly important for the fact that it was carefully designed to perform
several specific but separate functions: that of grain and corn storage, and
for the curing of tobacco. Its age, design, function, carpentry details and
known original exterior finishes combine to establish this building as one that
is altogether unique and highly important among all other surviving pre-Civil
War agricultural structures in this locality.

[X] see continuation sheet No. 9
For HISTORIC CONTEXT and MARYLAND COMPRE-
HENSIVE HISTORIC PRESERVATION PLAN data.
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- HISTORTIC CONTEXT':

MARYIAND COMPREHENSIVE HISTORIC PRESERVATION PLAN DATA
Geographic Organization: Western Shore

Chronological/Developmental Period(s):
Rural Agrarian Intensification, A.D. 1680-1815
Agricultural-Industrial Transition, A.D. 1815-1870

Prehistoric/Historic Period Theme(s):
Architecture/landscape Architecture/Commnity Planning
Resource Type:
Category: Buildings
Historic Enviromment: Rural
Historic Function(s) and Use(s):
DOMESTIC/single dwelling
AGRICULTURE/SUBSISTENCE/storage

Known Design Source: None

See Continuation Sheet No. 10
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. HISTORTC CONTEXT':

HISTORIC SETTING:

The Johnsontown house and granary were both constructed during the first
quarter of the nineteenth century, a period of intense building activity in this
locality that occurred simultaneocusly with major changes in local agricultural
practices and improved economic conditions. The architecture of the house
represents a significant though surprisingly brief transitional phase in local
building customs as traditional housing forms were rapidly succeeded by the
widely popular and essentially standardized side-passage house plan of the
Federal period. Similarly, the size and multi-functional design of the
Johnsontown granary illustrates the shifting away from the cultivation and export
of tobacco, long a staple of the local economy, to less labor intensive grain
crops for which there was a ready and expanding market both locally and abroad.
The several decades between Maryland's period of Rural Agrarian Intensification
(1680~1815) and Agricultural-Industrial Transition (1815-1870) were ones of
substantial change for Charles County, as it emerged from nearly two hundred
years of semi-isolation and cultural provincialism.

RESOURCE HISTORY:

The oldest part of the existing house and the adjacent granary were built
by General Caleb Hawkins shortly after 1798 when fire destroyed an earlier
dwelling and ancillary structures. The house was subsequently enlarged and
improvements made to the property following the sale of the land to John B.
Wills, Jr., in 1818. A merchant-planter, Wills developed the property into a
fairly profitable agricultural enterprise that owed a large measure of its
economic viability to the cultivation of cereal grains as well as the traditional
staple, tobacco. Wills died in 1844, after which his widow assumed the farm's
management, but as was true of most farmers in this locality, the Civil War and
the abolition of slavery had a catastrophic impact on the family's fortunes.:
Although the house and property remained in the ownership of Wills' heirs until
1943, it was occupied and farmed by tenants after about 1910. The original 700-
acre Johnsontown tract has since been broken into several smaller parcels.
Although the land remains in agricultural use, its physical complexion has

. changed; several new homes have been built, while all but one of the barns and
' other agricultural structures dating from the 1820-1900 period have been
destroyed. In 1980 the historic house and granary, together with 23 acres, were
sold to the present owner, who subsequently conveyed a preservation easement to
the State of Maryland/Maryland Historical Trust. -

See Continuation Sheet No. 11
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5 The recorded history of the Johnsontown property begins with a patent for
700 acres granted to Daniel Johnson and Richard Morris in 1661.' Called "Johnson
Towne," the tract was one of several in the immediate area patented by Johnson
between 1661 and 1667. In 1662 Morris assigned his half-interest in Johnsontown
to William Codwell.? The following year both Codwell's share of the land and
that retained by Daniel Johnson were acquired by Francis Wine (aka Wynn), a
cooper.® In 1665 Wine conveyed the 700 acres to Henry Hawkins.‘

Progenitor of one of Charles County's most prominent and influential
eighteenth-century families, Henry Hawkins subsequently married Wine's widow.
A prosperous planter, he held extensive landholdings, largely acquired through
purchase, and held various local offices, including that of sheriff and justice.
Hawkins, who also served in the Lower House of the Assembly, died in 1699,
apparently at Johnsontown.’

Following Hawkins' death, the property passed in ownership to his son Henr¥
Holland Hawkins, subject to a life estate held by his mother Elizabeth.
Elizabeth is believed to have continued to live at Johnsontown until her death
in 1717, by which time her son was living on a tract called "Hawkins' Purchase"

. located about 3 miles northeast of Jchnsontown.’ Like his father, Henry H.
Hawkins (1683-1751) was a prosperous land-owning planter, member of the Maryland
legislature, and a local officeholder. On his death, Johnsontown passed to his
son Josias, who also held local office and served in the legislature.® Josias
probably lived at Hawkins' Purchase until his death in 1789. Whether Johnsontown
was occupied by another family member or farmed by tenants is not known. In the
1783 tax assessments its improvements were described as including a small frame
dwelling with two brick chimneys "much out of repair," a kitchen and a quarter,
two corn houses and stables "also much out of repair," and "a small clapboard
dwelling inhabited by a tenant."® On Josias' death the Johnsontown lands passed

to his son Caleb.

In the 1798 federal direct tax lists, the dwelling and kitchen in existence
in 1783 were noted as having been recently "destroyed by fire." This house is
believed to have stood about 500 yards due east of the existing house in what
is now a cultivated field. Hawkins is believed to have begun construction of
the existing dwelling between 1800 and about 1810 when he is said to have moved
to Kentucky. It was probably also Hawkins who built the existing granary, as
well as a tobacco house that in the mid-1980s was moved to St. Mary's County.'
In 1818 Caleb Hawkins, "now of Charles County," conveyed his Johnsontown

plantation to John Baptist Wills, Jr.?

See Continuation Sheet No. 12
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A merchant-planter, John B. Wills, Jr., formerly resided in the then county
seat of Port Tobacco where he was a partner in the firm known as Edelen and
Thompson. Wills moved to the Johnsontown farm soon after acquiring it, according
to a road petition filed late that same year. It was probably shortly after
moving there that he enlarged the house, and built as well several new
agricultural structures that remained in existence until the late-1950s and the
1960s. The Johnsontown property has historically proved to be particularly well-
suited for the production of cereal grains, which apparently constituted the
principal crops raised on the farm during Wills' ownership. Wills also soon
expanded his land holdings by the purchase of other contiguous properties, which
together with the home plantation were cultivated and harvested by a labor force
of about 40 slaves. While records indicate that Wills was a fairly astute
businessman, various circumstances--perhaps aggravated by an apparently overly
generous nature and a passion for foxhunting and other social activities——
combined to create financial difficulties for him in the last decade of his life.
When he died in 1844 his debts exceeded the value of his personal estate,
necessitating the sale of his household furnishings, farm implements, part of
the livestock and several slaves.®

. John B. Wills left a will by which he bequeathed the Johnsontown plantation
to his son Alexander, subject to a life estate invested in Alexander's mother.
If Alexander predeceased his mother, the land was then to descend to Wills'
grandson Augustin Neale. 1In fact, Alexander Wills died nine months before his
father; both were interred about 75 feet west of the house. John B. Wills' widow
continued to live at Johnsontown until her death in 1864, at which time ownership
was assumed by Augustin W. Neale.

Neale, a Confederate veteran, appears to have resided at Jochnsontown
following the end of the Civil War. Valedictorian of the 1860 graduating class
of Georgetown College, he performed the office of superintendent of county
schools (1882-1897) and that of a deputy clerk of the Maryland Court of Appeals,
in addition to farming the Johnsontown property. In 1906 Neale moved to
Washington, D.C., where he lived until his death at age 93 in 1933.

It was probably about the time of Neale's move to Washington that the
exterior of the house was remodeled and the former hyphen raised to two stories.
The house and farm were subsequently rented to the Jameson family, who continued
to occupy the property until about 1943 when the land was sold by Neale's heirs
to land speculator William Ziff.' Three years later Ziff sold Johnsontown to
Charles Fenwick; in March 1951 Fenwick sold 100 acres of the tract to Haskell
Tull, and the balance of the land to Maurice Feimster the following July.
Shortly afterward, Feimster acquired the 100 acres from Tull, returning the

See Continuation Sheet No. 13
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. property to its boundaries as they existed during the Wills-Neale period of
ownership.’® The Feimsters occupied the house from about 1951 until the early
1960s when they built a new home on an adjacent site. The house was briefly
rented to a tenant, but had been vacant for about 20 years when it was sold to
the present owner in 1980. Following the sale of the property in 1980, the house
was thoroughly rehabilitated, work that was largely accomplished under a grant
from the Maryland Historical Trust. Following the sale of the house and land
it was renamed Hawksmoor to distinguish it from the balance of the original
tract, which continues to be known as Johnsontown Farm and the owners as
Johnsontown Farm, Inc.

NOTES:
(Unless otherwise noted, all land and probate records are at the Charles County

Courthouse, Ia Plata. Records of the Maryland State Archives are given as:
Annapolis. Liber and folio numbers are given as: XXX/000.)

1. Patents: B#1/16. Annapolis.
2- Ibidl '] B#l/lal
3. Ibid., B#1/231.

4. Ibid., B#1/232.

5. Edward C. Papenfuse, et al., A Biographical Dictionary of the Maryland
legislature, 1635-1789, 2 vols. (Baltimore: Johns Hopkins University
Press, 1980), vol. 1, p. 424.

6. Wills: WK#3/227.
7. Ibid., AB#3/114; Papenfuse, et al., 1:424.
8. Papenfuse, et al., 1:424.

9. 1783 Assessments, Charles County, District 6, Land. Annapolis.

10. 1798 Federal Direct Tax, Charles County. Annapolis.

See Continuation Sheet No. 14
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11. Listed in the Maryland Historical Trust's inventory as "Johnsontown Barn,"
(H-332, this building was moved and partially reconstructed on the property
known as "Ocean Hall," (SM-111; NR), in St. Mary's County.

12. Deeds: IB#12/542.

13. Inventories: 1845/302; Administration Accounts: 1845-1851/266-; Letter
fram Joseph Floyd to Francis Wills, 1826, in the Wills Collection, Southern
Maryland Studies Center, La Plata; J. Richard Rivoire, Homeplaces:

Traditional Domestic Architecture of Charles County, Maryland (La Plata,

Maryland: Charles County Community College, 1990), pp. 158-161.

14. Wills: DJ#16/360.
15. Deeds: TBM#79/435.

16. Ibid., TBM#84/596, PCM#91/61, PCM#97/154, 163.

RESOURCE ANALYSIS:

Improved agricultural practices and marketing conditions during the first
four decades of the nineteenth century brought increased economic prosperity for
Charles County. This, in turn, resulted in a dramatic surge in building
activity; more than two-thirds of the county's surviving pre-Civil War houses
date from the 1810-1840 period, as do more than 90% of its agricultural
buildings. Of the latter, there are far more granaries and corncribs than
tobacco barns, illustrating the significant increase in the production of cereal
grains that occurred in this locality during those same decades.

Despite the fact that the overwhelming majority of the county's historic
buildings are of this period, Johnsontown and its associated granary are both
architecturally unique. The oldest section of the house, for instance,
represents the only known extant example of its plan. While other dwellings with
similar room configurations once existed--three of the most notable being
Hollycut (CH-340), Charleston (CH-64) and Rock Hall (CH-85)--they have either

See Continuation Sheet No. 15
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bPeen destroyed or are now complete ruins. There are many aspects of the
building's design that establish its importance as a transitional link between
the hall-parlor houses characteristic of the previous century and the side-
passage houses that attained such extraordinary popularity during the Federal
period. The distinct, two-part design of Johnsontown's later east wing is of
comparable interest in the context of local architectural development.
Interestingly, Johnsontown's Period I first floor plan is nearly identical to
that of Charleston, and the design of its Period II wing closely parallels that
of the kitchen-service wing of Ia Grange (CH-3; NR). That one might have
influenced the other is suggested by the fact that all were built within about
20 years, and that the owners of the three buildings (John B. Wills, Daniel
Jenifer and Nicholas Stonestreet) were close friends and business associates.

The Johnsontown granary is of equal if not greater architectural interest.
Not only is it one of the county's earliest surviving agricultural buildings,
it is a wholly unique example of its form. While other early combination granary
and corncrib buildings exist, this is the only one with a central grain room
flanked by cribs that was originally designed as such and with this particular
arrangement of spaces. It is also the only one whose roof was obviously designed
to provide an additional area for the curing of tobacco. The building's overall
dimensions and its original exterior finishes are among other important features.
The architectural significance of the granary is further enhanced by the
generally excellent condition of its original framing, carpentry details and
interior fabric.

While not original to the site, the cemetery relocated to Johnsontown in
1990 is nevertheless of interest in its own right, having direct historical
associations with the Johnsontown property as well as comprising a collection
of nineteenth century funerary memorials of well above average quality. The two
vertical monuments with ledgers are particularly notable, and the angled marble
bases of the four remaining ledgers is a feature seldom seen in public or private
cemeteries in this locality.

The Johnsontown house and granary, complimented by the relocated Wills
family cemetery, constitute a combination of resources significant in a local
historic context and which meet the criteria requirements for listing in the
National Register of Historic Places.

See Continuation Sheet No. 16
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Verbal Boundary Description

See Site Plan and Boundary Map

@See continuation sheet No. 16

Boundary Justification

The boundaries encompass the known historic features of the property, define the
historical agricultyral setting of the house and granary, and constitute the extent
of the property protected by the historic preservation easement held by the Maryland
Historical Trust.
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Johnsontown is perhaps one of Charles County's better examples
of the telescoping, three-part plan, a house type popularly
associated with Southern Maryland and the Tidewater region.
Although it does not appear to be as architecturally sophis-
ticated as say, "Dent's Palace", also in Charles County, (CH-40),
a closer scrutiny of the original woodwork remaining in the
main, eighteenth century part of the house suggests the proba-
bility that it at one time possessed a very handsome interior.
Unfortunately, all that remains are its doors with raised
molded panels and an attractive corner stair with bold rail
and chamfered posts.

The oldest part of the house appears to have mid-eighteenth
century origins and its floor plan, consisting of two small
rooms at one end and a single large room at the other, is

not unlike the room configuration of two other Charles County
houses, "Charleston", (CH-64), and "Rock Hall", (CH-85),
although both of these date c. 1825. 1In the early nineteenth
century the house was extended at one end by two additions,

the last being a kitchen. It is believed that it was about
this time that the interior of the original house was renovated.

Johnsontown offers an interesting opportunity for study, not
only to determine its original appearance and how it relates
to other regional examples of mid-eighteenth century architec-
ture, but also the manner in which it evolved into its present
plan, a few details of which are thought to be locally unique.



